EXTRAORDINARY GAZETTE



THE SOUTH AUSTRALIAN

GOVERNMENT GAZETTE

www.governmentgazette.sa.gov.au

PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY

ALL PUBLIC ACTS appearing in this GAZETTE are to be considered official, and obeyed as such

ADELAIDE, FRIDAY, 21 OCTOBER 2011

CONTENTS

	Page
Appointments, Resignations, Etc	4286
Proclamations	4289

Government House, Adelaide, 21 October 2011

HIS Excellency the Governor has accepted the following resignations:

The Honourable Michael David Rann, MP

Premier

Minister for Economic Development

Minister for Social Inclusion

Minister for the Arts

Minister for Sustainability and Climate Change

The Honourable John Robert Rau, MP:

Minister for Justice

Minister for Urban Development, Planning and the City of Adelaide

Minister for Tourism

Minister for Food Marketing

The Honourable Gail Elizabeth Gago, MLC:

Minister for Public Sector Management

Minister for Consumer Affairs

Minister for Government Enterprises

Minister for Gambling

The Honourable Patrick Frederick Conlon, MP:

Minister for Transport

Minister for Infrastructure

The Honourable John David Hill, MP:

Minister for Health

Minister for The Southern Suburbs

Minister Assisting The Premier in the Arts

The Honourable Jay Wilson Weatherill, MP:

Minister for Education

Minister for Early Childhood Development

Minister for Science and Information Economy

The Honourable Jennifer Mary Rankine, MP:

Minister for Families and Communities

Minister for Housing

Minister for Ageing

Minister for Disability

The Honourable Paul Caica, MP:

Minister for Environment and Conservation

Minister for the River Murray

Minister for Water

The Honourable Anastasios Koutsantonis, MP:

Minister for Mineral Resources Development

Minister for Industry and Trade

Minister for Correctional Services

The Honourable Michael Francis O'Brien, MP:

Minister for Agriculture and Fisheries

Minister for Forests

Minister for Energy

Minister for the Northern Suburbs

The Honourable John James Snelling, MP:

Minister for Employment, Training and Further Education

The Honourable Grace Portolesi, MP

Minister for Aboriginal Affairs and Reconciliation

Minister for Multicultural Affairs

Minister for Youth

Minister for Volunteers

Minister Assisting the Premier in Social Inclusion

The Honourable Thomas Richard Kenyon, MP:

Minister for Recreation, Sport and Racing

Minister for Road Safety

Minister for Veterans' Affairs Minister Assisting the Premier with South Australia's Strategic Plan

Minister Assisting the Minister for Employment, Training and Further Education

By Command,

RITCHIE HOLLAND, Official Secretary

Government House, Adelaide, 21 October 2011

HIS Excellency the Governor has been pleased to make the following appointments:

The Honourable Jay Wilson Weatherill, MP:

Premier

Minister for State Development

The Honourable John Robert Rau, MP:

Minister for Planning

Minister for Business Services and Consumers

The Honourable Gail Elizabeth Gago, MLC:

Minister for Agriculture, Food and Fisheries

Minister for Forests

Minister for Tourism

The Honourable Patrick Frederick Conlon, MP:

Minister for Transport and Infrastructure

Minister for Housing and Urban Development

The Honourable John James Snelling, MP:

Minister for Defence Industries

Minister for Veterans' Affairs

The Honourable John David Hill, MP:

Minister for Health and Ageing

Minister for the Arts

The Honourable Jennifer Mary Rankine, MP:

Minister for Police

Minister for Correctional Services

Minister for Emergency Services

Minister for Road Safety

Minister for Multicultural Affairs

The Honourable Paul Caica, MP:

Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation

Minister for Water and the River Murray

Minister for Aboriginal Affairs and Reconciliation

The Honourable Anastasios Koutsantonis, MP:

Minister for Manufacturing, Innovation and Trade

Minister for Mineral Resources and Energy

The Honourable Michael Francis O'Brien, MP:

Minister for Finance

Minister for the Public Sector

The Honourable Grace Portolesi, MP:

Minister for Education and Child Development

The Honourable Thomas Richard Kenyon, MP:

Minister for Employment, Higher Education and Skills

Minister for Science and Information Economy

Minister for Recreation and Sport

The Honourable Chloë Catienne Fox, MP:

Minister for Transport Services

The Honourable Keith Ian Hunter, MLC:

Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion

Minister for Social Housing

Minister for Disabilities

Minister for Youth

Minister for Volunteers

By Command,

RITCHIE HOLLAND, Official Secretary

South Australia

Administrative Arrangements (Committal of Acts) Proclamation 2011

under section 5 of the Administrative Arrangements Act 1994

1—Short title

This proclamation may be cited as the *Administrative Arrangements (Committal of Acts) Proclamation 2011.*

2—Commencement

This proclamation comes into operation on the day on which it is made.

3—Committed of Acts

The administration of an Act referred to in Schedule 1 is committed to the Minister whose title appears at the head of the list in which the Act appears.

Schedule 1—Acts committed to Ministers

Minister for Agriculture, Food and Fisheries

Agricultural and Veterinary Chemicals (South Australia) Act 1994

Agricultural and Veterinary Products (Control of Use) Act 2002

Aquaculture Act 2001

Biological Control Act 1986

Brands Act 1933

Citrus Industry Act 2005

Fisheries Management Act 2007

Genetically Modified Crops Management Act 2004

Impounding Act 1920

Livestock Act 1997

Phylloxera and Grape Industry Act 1995

Plant Health Act 2009

Primary Industry Funding Schemes Act 1998

Primary Produce (Food Safety Schemes) Act 2004

Primary Producers Emergency Assistance Act 1967

Rural Industry Adjustment and Development Act 1985

South Australian Meat Corporation Act 1936

South Australian Meat Corporation (Sale of Assets) Act 1996

Veterinary Practice Act 2003

Wheat Marketing Act 1989

Wine Grapes Industry Act 1991

Minister for Business Services and Consumers

Authorised Betting Operations Act 2000

Building and Construction Industry Security of Payment Act 2009

Building Work Contractors Act 1995

Casino Act 1997

Collections for Charitable Purposes Act 1939

Conveyancers Act 1994

Fair Trading Act 1987

Gaming Machines Act 1992

Hairdressers Act 1988

Independent Gambling Authority Act 1995

Land Agents Act 1994

Land and Business (Sale and Conveyancing) Act 1994

Land Valuers Act 1994

Liquor Licensing Act 1997

Lottery and Gaming Act 1936

Occupational Licensing National Law (South Australia) Act 2011

Plumbers, Gas Fitters and Electricians Act 1995

Prices Act 1948

Problem Gambling Family Protection Orders Act 2004

Residential Parks Act 2007

Residential Tenancies Act 1995

Retail and Commercial Leases Act 1995

Second-hand Vehicle Dealers Act 1995

Travel Agents Act 1986

Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion

Carers Recognition Act 2005

Rates and Land Tax Remission Act 1986

Supported Residential Facilities Act 1992

Minister for Disabilities

Disability Services Act 1993

Julia Farr Services (Trusts) Act 2007

Minister for Education and Child Development

Adoption Act 1988

Child Protection Review (Powers and Immunities) Act 2002

Children's Protection Act 1993

Children's Services Act 1985

Commission of Inquiry (Children in State Care and Children on APY Lands) Act 2004

Education Act 1972

Family and Community Services Act 1972

SACE Board of South Australia Act 1983

Teachers Registration and Standards Act 2004

Minister for Employment, Higher Education and Skills

Construction Industry Training Fund Act 1993

Flinders University of South Australia Act 1966

Technical and Further Education Act 1975

Training and Skills Development Act 2008

University of Adelaide Act 1971

University of South Australia Act 1990

Minister for Finance

ASER (Restructure) Act 1997

Benefit Associations Act 1958

Electricity Corporations Act 1994

Electricity Corporations (Restructuring and Disposal) Act 1999

Financial Agreement Act 1994

First Home Owner Grant Act 2000

Governors' Pensions Act 1976

Hindmarsh Island Bridge Act 1999

Judges' Pensions Act 1971

National Wine Centre (Restructuring and Leasing Arrangements) Act 2002

Parliamentary Superannuation Act 1974

Petroleum Products Regulation Act 1995

Police Superannuation Act 1990

SGIC (Sale) Act 1995

South Australian Timber Corporation Act 1979

South Australian Timber Corporation (Sale of Assets) Act 1996

Southern State Superannuation Act 2009

State Lotteries Act 1966

State Procurement Act 2004

Superannuation Act 1988

Supplementary Financial Agreement (Soldiers Settlement Loans) Act 1934

Taxation Administration Act 1996

TAB (Disposal) Act 2000

Unclaimed Moneys Act 1891

Unclaimed Superannuation Benefits Act 1997

Westpac/Challenge Act 1996

Minister for Health and Ageing

Aged Citizens Clubs (Subsidies) Act 1963

Assisted Reproductive Treatment Act 1988

Blood Contaminants Act 1985

Consent to Medical Treatment and Palliative Care Act 1995

Food Act 2001

Gene Technology Act 2001

Health and Community Services Complaints Act 2004

Health Care Act 2008

Health Practitioner Regulation National Law (South Australia) Act 2010

Health Professionals (Special Events Exemption) Act 2000

Health Services Charitable Gifts Act 2011

Mount Gambier Hospital Hydrotherapy Pool Fund Act 2009

Occupational Therapy Practice Act 2005

Office for the Ageing Act 1995

Prohibition of Human Cloning for Reproduction Act 2003

Public and Environmental Health Act 1987

Research Involving Human Embryos Act 2003

Retirement Villages Act 1987

Transplantation and Anatomy Act 1983

Minister for Housing and Urban Development

Architectural Practice Act 2009

Housing and Urban Development (Administrative Arrangements) Act 1995

Minister for Manufacturing, Innovation and Trade

Industries Development Act 1941

Minister for Mineral Resources and Energy

Australian Energy Market Commission Establishment Act 2004

Broken Hill Proprietary Company's Indenture Act 1937

Cooper Basin (Ratification) Act 1975

Electrical Products Act 2000

Electricity Act 1996

Gas Act 1997

Mines and Works Inspection Act 1920

Mining Act 1971

National Electricity (South Australia) Act 1996

National Energy Retail Law (South Australia) Act 2011

National Gas (South Australia) Act 2008

Natural Gas Authority Act 1967

Offshore Minerals Act 2000

Opal Mining Act 1995

Petroleum and Geothermal Energy Act 2000

Petroleum (Submerged Lands) Act 1982

Roxby Downs (Indenture Ratification) Act 1982

Santos Limited (Regulation of Shareholdings) Act 1989

Stony Point (Liquids Project) Ratification Act 1981

The Electricity Trust of South Australia (Torrens Island Power Station) Act 1962

Whyalla Steel Works Act 1958

Minister for Planning

Development Act 1993

Linear Parks Act 2006

West Beach Recreation Reserve Act 1987

Minister for the Public Sector

Freedom of Information Act 1991

State Records Act 1997

Minister for Recreation and Sport

Boxing and Martial Arts Act 2000

Racing (Proprietary Business Licensing) Act 2000

Recreational Greenways Act 2000

Recreation Grounds (Joint Schemes) Act 1947

Recreation Grounds Rates and Taxes Exemption Act 1981

Sports Drug Testing Act 2000

Minister for Social Housing

Housing Agreement Act 1991

Housing Improvement Act 1940

South Australian Co-operative and Community Housing Act 1991

South Australian Housing Trust Act 1995

Minister for State Development

Economic Development Act 1993

Minister for State/Local Government Relations

Adelaide Cemeteries Authority Act 2001

Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation

Adelaide Dolphin Sanctuary Act 2005

Adelaide Park Lands Act 2005

Animal Welfare Act 1985

Botanic Gardens and State Herbarium Act 1978

Climate Change and Greenhouse Emissions Reduction Act 2007

Coast Protection Act 1972

Crown Land Management Act 2009

Crown Rates and Taxes Recovery Act 1945

Dog and Cat Management Act 1995

Dog Fence Act 1946

Environment Protection Act 1993

Environment Protection (Sea Dumping) Act 1984

Groundwater (Border Agreement) Act 1985

Heritage Places Act 1993

Historic Shipwrecks Act 1981

Lake Eyre Basin (Intergovernmental Agreement) Act 2001

Lands for Public Purposes Acquisition Act 1914

Marine Parks Act 2007

National Environment Protection Council (South Australia) Act 1995

National Parks and Wildlife Act 1972

National Trust of South Australia Act 1955

Native Vegetation Act 1991

Natural Resources Management Act 2004

Nuclear Waste Storage Facility (Prohibition) Act 2000

Pastoral Land Management and Conservation Act 1989

Plastic Shopping Bags (Waste Avoidance) Act 2008

Radiation Protection and Control Act 1982

South Eastern Water Conservation and Drainage Act 1992

Upper South East Dryland Salinity and Flood Management Act 2002

Water Efficiency Labelling and Standards Act 2006

Water Resources Act 1997

Wilderness Protection Act 1992

Wilpena Station Tourist Facility Act 1990

Wingfield Waste Depot Closure Act 1999

Zero Waste SA Act 2004

Minister for Transport and Infrastructure

Adelaide Oval Redevelopment and Management Act 2011

Adelaide Railway Station Development Act 1984

Aerodrome Fees Act 1998

Air Navigation Act 1937

Air Transport (Route Licensing—Passenger Services) Act 2002

Alice Springs to Darwin Railway Act 1997

AustralAsia Railway (Third Party Access) Act 1999

Civil Aviation (Carriers' Liability) Act 1962

Commissioner of Public Works Incorporation Act 1917

General Tramways Act 1884

Geographical Names Act 1991

Golden Grove (Indenture Ratification) Act 1984

Goods Securities Act 1986

Harbors and Navigation Act 1993

Highways Act 1926

Maritime Services (Access) Act 2000

Metropolitan Adelaide Road Widening Plan Act 1972

Mile End Underpass Act 2005

Mobil Lubricating Oil Refinery (Indenture) Act 1976

Morphett Street Bridge Act 1964

Motor Vehicles Act 1959

National Soldiers Memorial Act 1949

Non-Metropolitan Railways (Transfer) Act 1997

North Haven Development Act 1972

North Haven (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1986

Oil Refinery (Hundred of Noarlunga) Indenture Act 1958

Proof of Sunrise and Sunset Act 1923

Protection of Marine Waters (Prevention of Pollution from Ships) Act 1987

Public Employees Housing Act 1987

Rail Commissioner Act 2009

Rail Safety Act 2007

Rail Transport Facilitation Fund Act 2001

Railways (Operations and Access) Act 1997

Railways (Transfer Agreement) Act 1975

Road Traffic Act 1961

Roads (Opening and Closing) Act 1991

South Australian Ports (Bulk Handling Facilities) Act 1996

South Australian Ports (Disposal of Maritime Assets) Act 2000

Steamtown Peterborough (Vesting of Property) Act 1986

Survey Act 1992

Tarcoola to Alice Springs Railway Agreement Act 1974

Terrorism (Surface Transport Security) Act 2011

Valuation of Land Act 1971

Victoria Square Act 2005

West Lakes Development Act 1969

Minister for Transport Services

Passenger Transport Act 1994

Minister for Veterans' Affairs

ANZAC Day Commemoration Act 2005

Minister for Water and the River Murray

Ground Water (Qualco-Sunlands) Control Act 2000

Irrigation Act 2009

Metropolitan Drainage Act 1935

Murray-Darling Basin Act 2008

Renmark Irrigation Trust Act 2009

River Murray Act 2003

River Murray Waters Agreement Supplemental Agreement Act 1963

River Murray Waters (Dartmouth Reservoir) Act 1971

Sewerage Act 1929

South Australian Water Corporation Act 1994

Water (Commonwealth Powers) Act 2008

Water Conservation Act 1936

Waterworks Act 1932

Premier

City of Adelaide Act 1998

Constitution Act 1934

South Australian Motor Sport Act 1984

Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 21 October 2011

DPC11/043CS

South Australia

Administrative Arrangements (Constitution of Ministers as Bodies Corporate) Proclamation 2011

under section 7 of the Administrative Arrangements Act 1994

1—Short title

This proclamation may be cited as the *Administrative Arrangements (Constitution of Ministers as Bodies Corporate) Proclamation 2011.*

2—Commencement

This proclamation comes into operation on the day on which it is made.

3—Dissolution of certain bodies corporate

The bodies corporate referred to in Schedule 1 are dissolved.

4—Constitution of certain Ministers as bodies corporate

The Ministers referred to in Schedule 2 are constituted as bodies corporate.

5—Vesting of certain assets, rights and liabilities

- (1) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Ageing are vested in and attached to the Minister for Health and Ageing.
- (2) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Agriculture and Fisheries are vested in and attached to the Minister for Agriculture, Food and Fisheries.
- (3) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Consumer Affairs are vested in and attached to the Minister for Business Services and Consumers.
- (4) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Disability are vested in and attached to the Minister for Disabilities.
- (5) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Early Childhood Development are vested in and attached to the Minister for Education and Child Development.
- (6) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Economic Development are vested in and attached to the Minister for State Development.
- (7) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Education are vested in and attached to the Minister for Education and Child Development.
- (8) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Employment, Training and Further Education are vested in and attached to the Minister for Employment, Higher Education and Skills.
- (9) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Energy are vested in and attached to the Minister for Mineral Resources and Energy.

- (10) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Environment and Conservation are vested in and attached to the Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation.
- (11) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Families and Communities are vested in and attached to the Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion and the Minister for Education and Child Development according to the distribution of Ministerial responsibilities and functions between the relevant Ministers so that assets, rights and liabilities appropriate to particular responsibilities or functions vest in, or attach to, the appropriate body corporate.
- (12) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Food Marketing are vested in and attached to the Minister for Agriculture, Food and Fisheries.
- (13) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Gambling are vested in and attached to the Minister for Business Services and Consumers.
- (14) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Government Enterprises are vested in and attached to the Minister for Finance.
- (15) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Health are vested in and attached to the Minister for Health and Ageing.
- (16) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Housing are vested in and attached to the Minister for Housing and Urban Development and the Minister for Social Housing according to the distribution of Ministerial responsibilities and functions between the relevant Ministers so that assets, rights and liabilities appropriate to particular responsibilities or functions vest in, or attach to, the appropriate body corporate.
- (17) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Industry and Trade are vested in and attached to the Minister for Manufacturing, Innovation and Trade.
- (18) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Infrastructure are vested in and attached to the Minister for Transport and Infrastructure.
- (19) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Justice are vested in and attached to the Attorney-General.
- (20) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Mineral Resources Development are vested in and attached to the Minister for Mineral Resources and Energy.
- (21) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Motor Sport are vested in and attached to the Premier.
- (22) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for the Northern Suburbs are vested in and attached to the Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion.
- (23) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Public Sector Management are vested in and attached to the Minister for the Public Sector.
- (24) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Recreation, Sport and Racing are vested in and attached to the Minister for Recreation and Sport.
- (25) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for the River Murray are vested in and attached to the Minister for Water and the River Murray.

- (26) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Social Inclusion are vested in and attached to the Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion.
- (27) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for the Southern Suburbs are vested in and attached to the Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion.
- (28) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Sustainability and Climate Change are vested in and attached to the Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation.
- (29) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Transport are vested in and attached to the Minister for Transport and Infrastructure and the Minister for Transport Services according to the distribution of Ministerial responsibilities and functions between the relevant Ministers so that assets, rights and liabilities appropriate to particular responsibilities or functions vest in, or attach to, the appropriate body corporate.
- (30) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Urban Development, Planning and the City of Adelaide are vested in and attached to the Minister for Housing and Urban Development, the Minister for Planning and the Premier according to the distribution of Ministerial responsibilities and functions between the relevant Ministers so that assets, rights and liabilities appropriate to particular responsibilities or functions vest in, or attach to, the appropriate body corporate.
- (31) The assets, rights and liabilities of the former body corporate know as the Minister for Water are vested in and attached to the Minister for Water and the River Murray.

Schedule 1—Bodies corporate dissolved

Minister for Ageing

Minister for Agriculture and Fisheries

Minister for Consumer Affairs

Minister for Disability

Minister for Early Childhood Development

Minister for Economic Development

Minister for Education

Minister for Employment, Training and Further Education

Minister for Energy

Minister for Environment and Conservation

Minister for Families and Communities

Minister for Food Marketing

Minister for Gambling

Minister for Government Enterprises

Minister for Health

Minister for Housing

Minister for Industry and Trade

Minister for Infrastructure

Minister for Justice

Minister for Mineral Resources Development

Minister for Motor Sport

Minister for the Northern Suburbs

Minister for Public Sector Management

Minister for Recreation, Sport and Racing

Minister for the River Murray

Minister for Social Inclusion

Minister for the Southern Suburbs

Minister for Sustainability and Climate Change

Minister for Transport

Minister for Urban Development, Planning and the City of Adelaide

Minister for Water

Schedule 2—Ministers constituted as bodies corporate

Minister for Agriculture, Food and Fisheries

Minister for Business Services and Consumers

Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion

Minister for Disabilities

Minister for Education and Child Development

Minister for Employment, Higher Education and Skills

Minister for Finance

Minister for Health and Ageing

Minister for Housing and Urban Development

Minister for Manufacturing, Innovation and Trade

Minister for Mineral Resources and Energy

Minister for Planning

Minister for the Public Sector

Minister for Recreation and Sport

Minister for Social Housing

Minister for State Development

Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation

Minister for Transport and Infrastructure

Minister for Transport Services

Minister for Water and the River Murray

Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 21 October 2011

DPC11/043CS

South Australia

Administrative Arrangements (References to Ministers) Proclamation 2011

under section 8 of the Administrative Arrangements Act 1994

1—Short title

This proclamation may be cited as the *Administrative Arrangements (References to Ministers) Proclamation 2011*.

2—Commencement

This proclamation comes into operation on the day on which it is made.

3—Interpretative provision

- (1) A reference to the Minister for Ageing in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Health and Ageing.
- (2) A reference to the Minister for Agriculture and Fisheries in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Agriculture, Food and Fisheries.
- (3) A reference to the Minister for Consumer Affairs in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Business Services and Consumers.
- (4) A reference to the Minister for Disability in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Disabilities.
- (5) A reference to the Minister for Early Childhood Development in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Education and Child Development.
- (6) A reference to the Minister for Economic Development in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for State Development.
- (7) A reference to the Minister for Education in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Education and Child Development.
- (8) A reference to the Minister for Employment, Training and Further Education in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Employment, Higher Education and Skills.
- (9) A reference to the Minister for Energy in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Mineral Resources and Energy.

- (10) A reference to the Minister for Environment and Conservation in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation.
- (11) A reference to the Minister for Families and Communities in an Act or a statutory instrument under an Act will, if the Act was, on the day immediately before the effective date, committed to the administration of that Minister, have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister to whom the administration of the Act is for the time being committed.
- (12) A reference to the Minister for Families and Communities in a statutory instrument or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document, made or entered into before the effective date (other than a reference to which subclause (11) is applicable) will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion or the Minister for Education and Child Development according to the distribution of Ministerial responsibilities and functions between the relevant Ministers so that the reference will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister to whom the relevant responsibilities or functions are currently assigned.
- (13) A reference to the Minister for Food Marketing in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Agriculture, Food and Fisheries.
- (14) A reference to the Minister for Gambling in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Business Services and Consumers.
- (15) A reference to the Minister for Government Enterprises in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Finance.
- (16) A reference to the Minister for Health in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Health and Ageing.
- (17) A reference to the Minister for Housing in an Act or a statutory instrument under an Act will, if the Act was, on the day immediately before the effective date, committed to the administration of that Minister, have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister to whom the administration of the Act is for the time being committed.
- (18) A reference to the Minister for Housing in a statutory instrument or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document, made or entered into before the effective date (other than a reference to which subclause (17) is applicable) will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Housing and Urban Development or the Minister for Social Housing according to the distribution of Ministerial responsibilities and functions between the relevant Ministers so that the reference will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister to whom the relevant responsibilities or functions are currently assigned.
- (19) A reference to the Minister for Industry and Trade in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Manufacturing, Innovation and Trade.
- (20) A reference to the Minister for Infrastructure in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Transport and Infrastructure.
- (21) A reference to the Minister for Justice in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Attorney-General.

- (22) A reference to the Minister for Mineral Resources Development in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Mineral Resources and Energy.
- (23) A reference to the Minister for Motor Sport in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Premier.
- (24) A reference to the Minister for the Northern Suburbs in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion.
- (25) A reference to the Minister for Public Sector Management in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for the Public Sector.
- (26) A reference to the Minister for Recreation, Sport and Racing in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Recreation and Sport.
- (27) A reference to the Minister for the River Murray in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Water and the River Murray.
- (28) A reference to the Minister for Social Inclusion in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion.
- (29) A reference to the Minister for the Southern Suburbs in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion.
- (30) A reference to the Minister for Sustainability and Climate Change in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation.
- (31) A reference to the Minister for Transport in an Act or a statutory instrument under an Act will, if the Act was, on the day immediately before the effective date, committed to the administration of that Minister, have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister to whom the administration of the Act is for the time being committed.
- (32) A reference to the Minister for Transport in a statutory instrument or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document, made or entered into before the effective date (other than a reference to which subclause (31) is applicable) will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Transport and Infrastructure or the Minister for Transport Services according to the distribution of Ministerial responsibilities and functions between the relevant Ministers so that the reference will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister to whom the relevant responsibilities or functions are currently assigned.
- (33) A reference to the Minister for Urban Development, Planning and the City of Adelaide in an Act or a statutory instrument under an Act will, if the Act was, on the day immediately before the effective date, committed to the administration of that Minister, have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister to whom the administration of the Act is for the time being committed.

- (34) A reference to the Minister for Urban Development, Planning and the City of Adelaide in a statutory instrument or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document, made or entered into before the effective date (other than a reference to which subclause (33) is applicable) will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Housing and Urban Development, the Minister for Planning or the Premier according to the distribution of Ministerial responsibilities and functions between the relevant Ministers so that the reference will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister to whom the relevant responsibilities or functions are currently assigned.
- (35) A reference to the Minister for Water in an Act, a statutory instrument under an Act or any other kind of instrument, or a contract, agreement or other document will have effect as if it were a reference to the Minister for Water and the River Murray.
- (36) In this clause—

effective date means the date on which this proclamation is made.

Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 21 October 2011

DPC11/043CS

South Australia

Public Sector (Administrative Units of Public Service) Proclamation 2011

under sections 26 and 28 of the Public Sector Act 2009

1—Short title

This proclamation may be cited as the *Public Sector (Administrative Units of Public Service) Proclamation 2011.*

2—Commencement

This proclamation comes into operation on the day on which it is made.

3—Alteration of titles

The title of an existing department listed in the table in Schedule 1 is altered to the title listed in the table opposite the reference to the department.

4—Designation of responsible Ministers

For each administrative unit listed in the table in Schedule 2, the Minister listed in the table opposite the reference to the unit is designated as the unit's Minister with responsibility for the unit.

Schedule 1—Alteration of titles

Existing department	New title
Department of Education and Children's Services	Department of Education and Child Development
Department for Families and Communities	Department for Communities and Social Inclusion
Department of Primary Industries and Resources	Department of Primary Industries and Regions
Department of Trade and Economic Development	Department of Manufacturing, Innovation, Trade and Resources
Department for Transport, Energy and Infrastructure	Department of Planning, Transport and Infrastructure

Schedule 2—Designation of responsible Ministers

Administrative unit	Administrative unit's Minister
Defence SA	Minister for Defence Industries
Department for Communities and Social Inclusion	Minister for Communities and Social Inclusion
Department of Education and Child Development	Minister for Education and Child Development
Department of Environment and Natural Resources	Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation
Environment Protection Authority	Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation
Department of Further Education, Employment, Science and Technology	Minister for Employment, Higher Education and Skills

Administrative unit	Administrative unit's Minister
Department of Health	Minister for Health and Ageing
Department of Justice	Attorney-General
Department of Manufacturing, Innovation, Trade and Resources	Minister for Manufacturing, Innovation and Trade
Department of Planning and Local Government	Minister for Planning
Department of Planning, Transport and Infrastructure	Minister for Transport and Infrastructure
Department of Primary Industries and Regions	Minister for Agriculture, Food and Fisheries
Department for Water	Minister for Water and the River Murray
Office of Zero Waste	Minister for Sustainability, Environment and Conservation

Made by the Governor

with the advice and consent of the Executive Council on 21 October 2011

DPC11/043CS